ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 7, 2011
3:20 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Craig Johnson, Vice Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes
Representative Bob M1l er

MEMBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 87
"An Act relating to penalties for antitrust violations."

- MOVED CSHB 87(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 164

"An Act relating to insurance; relating to health -care
i nsurance, exenption of certain insurers, reporting, notice, and
recor d- keepi ng requirenents for i nsurers, bi ogr aphi cal
affidavits, qualifications of alien insurers assumng ceded
i nsurance, risk-based capital for insurers, insurance holding
conpani es, licensing, federal requi renents for nonadmtted
i nsurers, surplus lines insurance, i nsurance fraud, life
i nsurance policies and annuity contracts, rate filings by health
care insurers, long-term care insurance, autonobile service
corporations, guaranty fund deposits of a title insurer, joint
title plants, del i nquency  proceedi ngs, fraternal benefit
societies, multiple enployer welfare arrangenents, hospital and
medi cal service cor porations, and heal t h mai nt enance
organi zations; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 164(L&C) OUT OF COMM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 155
"An Act relating to public construction contracts."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 7, 2011



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 87
SHORT TITLE: ANTI TRUST VI OLATI ON PENALTI ES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) OLSON, HOLMES

01/18/11 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/14/11
01/18/11 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/18/ 11 (H L&C, JUD

02/ 28/ 11 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 28/ 11 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/07/ 11 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 164

SHORT TITLE: | NSURANCE: HEALTH CARE & OTHER
SPONSOR(s): LABOR & COMVERCE

02/ 18/ 11 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 18/ 11 (H) L&C, FIN

02/ 21/ 11 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124
02/ 21/ 11 (H Heard & Held

02/ 21/ 11 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 23/ 11 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124
02/ 23/ 11 (H Heard & Held

02/ 23/ 11 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 28/ 11 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124
02/ 28/ 11 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
03/07/ 11 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 155
SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C CONSTRUCTI ON CONTRACTS
SPONSOR(s): LABOR & COMMERCE

02/ 11/ 11 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 11/ 11 (H) L&C

02/ 25/ 11 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 25/ 11 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 25/ 11 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 28/ 11 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 28/ 11 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 28/ 11 (H M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 07/ 11 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

JAVES WALDO, St af f

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- March 7, 2011



Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 87 on behalf of a joint prine
sponsor, Representative Lindsey Hol nes.

CLYDE (ED) SN FFEN, JR., Senior Assistant Attorney General

Conmmrer ci al / Fai r Busi ness Section

Civil D vision (Anchorage)

Department of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provi ded comrents and answered questions
during the discussion of HB 87.

LI NDA HALL, Director

Di vision of |nsurance

Anchorage O fice

Depart ment of Community & Econom c¢ Devel opnent ( DCCED)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the changes in the proposed
committee substitute (CS) and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 164.

JENNI FER SENETTE, St af f

Representative Kurt O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on Amendnent 1 to HB 155, on
behalf of the House Labor & Conmerce Conmittee, chaired by
Representative Kurt O son.

MAX M ELKE, Busi ness Manager

Plumbers & Pipefitters Local 262

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

MATHEW M ELKE
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 155.

JON SM TH, Menber

Al aska Council| of Carpenters Local 2247

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

MARVI N YODER, Deputy Admi nistrator
Cty of Wasilla

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- March 7, 2011



Wasi |l a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 155.

SHANE LI NSEY
Wasi |l a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

LORI DAVEY, Menber

Board of Supervisors

Sout h Gol denvi ew Rural Road Service Area

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 155.

NANCY M PETERSQN, Public Wrks Director

Cty of Unal aska

Unal aska, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 155.

SH RLEY MARQUARDT, Mayor

City of Unal aska;

Vi ce President, Al aska Municipal League (AM.)

Unal aska, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 155.

BRET HELMS, Training Director

Uni ted Association of Plunmbers and Pipefitters, Local 375
Fai r banks, Al aska.

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

ZEBULON WOCODMAN, Member

Laborers Local 942

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

JEAN TRAI NOR, Member

Al aska Public Enpl oyees Associ ati on (APEA)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

JIM LAITI, Business Representative

Pl unbers and Pi pefitters Local 375

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 155.

JASON ALWARD, Busi ness Agent

I nternational Union of Operating Engi neers Local 302
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 7, 2011



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

RON AXTELL, Representative

Laborers Union Local 942

Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 155.

KEI TH MONTGOMVERY, Busi ness Representative

Carpenters Local 1281

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

JOHN GARRETT, Member

Sheet Metal Wbrkers Local 23

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

BRONSON FRYE, Menber

Painters and Allied Trades Union, Local 1959

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

LARRY BELL, Representative

I nternational Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers (IBEW Local
1547

Wasilla, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

SHAWN CRCSS, Apprentice

I nternational Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers (IBEW Local
1547

Eagl e River, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 155.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:20: 09 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:20 p.m Representatives d son

M Il ler, Thonpson, and Hol mes were present at the call to order

Representatives Chenault and Johnson arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HB 87- ANTI TRUST VI OLATI ON PENALTI ES

3:20: 26 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- March 7, 2011



CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 87, "An Act relating to penalties for antitrust
viol ations."

3:20: 33 PM

JAMES WALDO, Staff, Representative Lindsey Holnmes, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, introduced hinself.

3:20: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES nobved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) | abeled 27-LS0331\I, Bannister, 2/16/11, as the
wor ki ng docunent . There being no objection, Version | was
before the commttee.

MR. WALDO expl ained the proposed CS would update the penalties

for antitrust violations for Al aska. Currently the maxinmum
penalty for an antitrust violation is $20,000 for a natural
person and $50,000 for an organization. This bill would

increase the maxinmum penalty for antitrust violations to
$1, 000,000 for a natural person and $50,000,000 for an

or gani zati on. The federal penalties are set at $1, 000,000 for
an individual and $100, 000,000 for a corporation. He suggested
that the level selected would act as a deterrent. The first

section relates to the crimnal violation, and would increase
the offense froma m sdeneanor to a class C felony.

3:23: 51 PM

MR. WALDO related that proposed Section 2 was added in the
proposed CS, to allow the attorney general to seek civil
penal ties. This would provide an extra tool for the Departnment
of Law (DOL) to pursue antitrust violations, which while not
frequently used is available to the departnent.

CHAIR OLSON remarked that he and Representative Holnmes have
worked with M. Sniffen on the | anguage for this bill

3:24:59 PM

CLYDE (ED) SN FFEN, JR, Senior Assistant Attorney General,
Commercial/Fair Business Section, Cvil D vision (Anchorage),
Departnent of Law (DOL), said that the proposed CS woul d update
the antitrust provisions to add a civil penalty provision.
Currently, the DO. does not have a civil penalty in its

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- March 7, 2011



antitrust statute. He pointed out that the crimnal violations
are nore difficult to prosecute due to the necessity to prove
beyond a reasonabl e doubt when making the case. In nmulti-state
actions, states with the strongest penalty provisions end up
with nore of the settlenent noney. The state has nmade good
argunents but it would have been nice to have had nore authority
so it could have argued for a "bigger piece of the pie." The
anounts are on the high side conpared to other states, but not
to federal statutes. |In 2007, the federal statutes were anended
to increase the penalty to $10,000,000 for individuals and
$100, 000, 000 for corporations.

MR. SNI FFEN recalled sone states are working to increase their
penalty provisions. He referred to a chart in nenbers' packets,
which outlines the penalty statutes for other states. Most
states were hoping that they could anend their statutes to be in
line with federal statutes, he said.

3:28:09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked whether the only penalties are
fines, except for inprisonment of not nore than a year. He
surmi sed that a corporation could not be inprisoned.

MR. SNIFFEN answered that a state can inprison corporate
officials, and violations by corporations can be felonies. The
federal governnment has inprisoned corporate officials, which can
be difficult, but can occur.

3:29:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  CHENAULT asked whet her the penalties of
$1, 000, 000 and $50, 000, 000, respectively, were reasonable since
none of the other states' penalties were near that anount.

MR. SNI FFEN agreed, except for the federal penalties which are
set at $10, 000,000 and $100, 000, 000. He offered his belief that
many of the other states enacted their laws in the 70s and 80s.
Sone are outdated. Al aska would definitely on the high side
conpared to other states, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT expressed concern that the state would
strive to match the federal governnent.

3:30:41 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 7, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON referred to the chart previously referred
to, noting that Kansas has a $5,000 per day penalty and he
wondered how the penalty is inplenented, from inception until
the time it is resolved, since the penalties could accrue pretty
rapidly.

MR. SNIFFEN related it is difficult to determne the start and
stop dates. He explained the DOL likes to avoid that nethod of
inposing a penalty since it can be difficult to determ ne when
it should start or end. Typically a penalty provision would
commence as soon as the violation is detected and if it goes to
court the jury often will often decide the start and when the
penalty is abated. He elaborated that determ ning the dates can
| ead to considerable discussion and debate. He said sonetines
it can be argued that violations start or stop when a nmeno is
witten to sonmeone in the conpany. He further related that the
per day penalty provision can create a factual question whereas
a flat anpunt, in particular, a large one, leaves it to the
court to decide based on the facts and the goal of deterrence.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether it would be a deterrent to
have a $5, 000 per day anount.

MR. SNIFFEN agreed with the logic, that it would provide an
incentive to settle, but he said it also depends on the conpany
since it may result in the attitude of sinply the conpany's cost
of doing business. In other instances a flat rate of a
$50, 000, 000 fine can also an incentive.

3:33:45 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked if he was famliar with the San D ego based
Senpra Energy litigation with the State of California, which
arose out of the Energy Crisis of 2000-2001.

MR. SNI FFEN sai d he was unsure.

CHAIR OLSON stated it was a price fixing case and the state
settled out of court. He thought the damages collectively
reached nearly $2 billion. He said the damages were thought to
have been $32 billion and if so, this bill nmght be on the Iight
si de.

3:35: 06 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 87.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- March 7, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT asked whet her soneone could address the
Departnent of Law s fiscal note.

MR. SNI FFEN said he prepared the fiscal note and HB 87 has no
addi tional fiscal inpact.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT asked if the DOL woul d not be used.

MR. SNIFFEN related that the DOL currently handles these types
of cases. He was unsure this would create nore work, but the
bill would allow for additional penalties and allow the
departnment to have better recoveries.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT expressed general concern on zero fiscal
notes. As bills pass additional costs are incurred, he said.

CHAIR OLSON noted the bill has another conmmttee of referral
whi ch he thought was the House Finance Comm ttee.

3:37:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked how many cases of this type the DOL
is currently handling.

MR. SNl FFEN answered that the DOL just resolved a multi-state
case involving the drug Ovcon, manufactured by Warner Chilcott
phar maceuti cal s. He stated he has another case under
consideration that probably is not worth pursuing unless the
state had provisions such as this in place to allow for
significant recovery. He summarized that there are a few cases,
not many.

CHAIR OLSON corrected an earlier statenent. The next committee
of referral is the House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

3:38: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT noved to report the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 87, |abeled 27-LS0331\I, Bannister,
2/16/ 11, out of commttee with individual recomendations and
the acconpanying zero fiscal note. There being no objection,
CSHB 87(L&C) was reported from the House Labor and Commerce
Standi ng Comm ttee.

3. 38: 56 PM

The conmttee took an at-ease from3:38 p.m to 3:41 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- March 7, 2011



3:41:17 PM

HB 164- 1 NSURANCE: HEALTH CARE & OTHER

CHAI R CLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 164, "An Act relating to insurance; relating to
heal th care insurance, exenption of certain insurers, reporting,

noti ce, and recor d- keepi ng requirenents for i nsurers,
bi ogr aphi cal af fidavits, qualifications of alien insurers
assum ng ceded insurance, risk-based capital for insurers,
i nsurance hol ding conpani es, licensing, federal requirenents for

nonadm tted insurers, surplus |ines insurance, insurance fraud,
life insurance policies and annuity contracts, rate filings by
health <care insurers, long-term care insurance, autonobile
service corporations, guaranty fund deposits of a title insurer,
joint title plants, delinquency proceedings, fraternal benefit
societies, multiple enployer welfare arrangenents, hospital and
medi cal service cor porati ons, and heal th mai nt enance
organi zations; and providing for an effective date."

3:41: 23 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 164, | abeled 27-LS0444\M Bailey, 3/4/11,

as the working docunent. There being no objection, Version M was
before the commttee.

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for purpose of discussion.
3:41: 44 PM
LI NDA HALL, Director, Division of Insurance, Anchorage Ofice

Department of Community & Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED), referred
to the changes in the CS. The majority of changes were added to

clarify the bill. She turned to page 50, which adds a provision
to ensure clarity. She referred to page 9, subsection (b),
whi ch read, "Notw thstanding the definition of 'group market' in
AS 21.54.500..." She said the Division of |Insurance (DA)

wanted to be certain to avoid any anbiguity as to whether
i ndi vidual policies could be sold to a group under certain
ci rcunst ances.

3:43: 41 PM

M5. HALL referred to page 62, proposed Section 93 of Version M
whi ch was added. She read, "Unless another form of paynment is

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -10- March 7, 2011



agreed to by the policy holder or beneficiary, an..." which

requires an insurer to pay with a negotiable bank check. She
poi nted out publicity by life insurance conpanies of
"checkbooks," which provided a neans of distributing proceeds
from life insurance. She stated this is an appropriate way of
distributing proceeds as it allows the beneficiary to
contenplate and determne what to do with the funds. The
policy holder or the beneficiary would need to agree to
sonething other than a negotiable check. The DA would adopt
regul ations for disclosure, based on a nodel. This would allow

the policy holder or beneficiary to determ ne how to receive the
funds rather than receive a lunp sum This is especially useful
during stressful tines.

M5. HALL related that proposed Sections 86 and 87 were del et ed.
These sections dealt with insolvencies and |oss reinbursenent,
and noney deposited to the guarantee fund. The industry
expressed concern as to how this would inpact Al aska as conpared
to other states. Thus, the DO asked these proposed sections be
deleted fromthe bill.

3:46: 02 PM
M5. HALL referred to the final substantive change is in proposed

Section 62 and 77, which refer to the individual and group rate
filings. She previously discussed the DO having the ability to

review health insurance rates prior to them being used. The
| anguage has been adjusted to match the file and use | anguage
for other insurance rates. She related that rates nust still be

filed and the DO would have an opportunity to review them
Rates would go into effect 45 days after filing, if not
di sapproved. She stated an effective date of January 1, 2012,
was added to allow insurers tinme to adopt the changes.

3:47: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT referred to the "checkbook" i ssue. He
asked if that provision would only be in effect if the party
knew he/she was the beneficiary and would need to agree to the
one-time payout or another nethod of paynent.

M5. HALL responded that either the policy holder or the
beneficiary would have to agree. The policy holder could
designate the nethod up front, whereas the beneficiary could
only exercise the option |ater.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 7, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT asked whether beneficiaries could opt
for a lunp sum

M5. HALL answered yes.
CHAI R OLSON renoved his objection.
3:48: 55 PM

REPRESENTATIVE JOHNSON nmade a notion to adopt Conceptua
Amendnent 1, which read [original punctuation provided]:

ANVENDVENT
To: CS HB 64(LC)(27-LS0444\ M
By: Rep. dson

Page 1, Line 9: Follow ng “corporations,” delete “and”
Page 1, Line 9: Follow ng “organi zations” delete “;”
and insert “, and alternate forns of paynment to policy
hol ders;”

Page 12, Line 20: Delete “or coverage”

Page 28, Line 28: Delete “3.7 percent on”

Page 38, Line 23: Delete “30” and insert “45”

Page 38, Line 25: Delete "“becones” and insert “may
becone”

Page 49, Line 14: Delete “30” and insert “45”

Page 49, Line 15: Delete “becones” and insert “may
becone”

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
3:49: 31 PM

M5. HALL explained Conceptual Amendnent 1. She stated that
Conceptual Amendnent 1 would address inconsistencies the DO
found in HB 164. The first two relate to the title, adding a
reference to proposed Section 93, the retained asset account.
The next 2, page 12 and 28 are technical changes. The changes
on page 38 and page 49 are the two rate filings for consistency
pur poses, changing the time to 45 days and changed | anguage,
"becone effective" to "may become” effective so insurance
conpani es can make changes out farther than 45 days to allow an
option so their rates won't automatically becone effective.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 7, 2011



3:50: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether rates ever are reduced and
if 45 days is appropriate.

M5. HALL answered that health insurance rates have not, but sone
rates do decrease.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON commented that the rates are not going
down so he wondered, "Wy not do it now?"

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES renoved her objection. There being no
further objections, Conceptual Anmendnment 1 was adopt ed.

3:52:36 PM

M5. HALL referred to a letter dated March 4, 2011, from the
Nat i onal Association of Professional Surplus Lines Ofices, Ltd.
(NAPSLO) regarding surplus lines. She stated several statenents
were made in the letter. She agreed the state is not required
to share the taxes. The state is changing the way in which it
collects taxes on surplus lines coverage. Most of the prem se
of the nonadmtted and reinsurance act is that the states wll
regulate their own risk, collect the taxes, and allocate those
to the states in which the risk is |ocated. She also referred
to statenents about taxing authority being given to an agency.
She responded to that by stating the |egislature has already

given taxing authority to the DO. The DA |levies taxes on
i nsurance premunms so that is not a new authority being given to
an agency. She pointed out that this is not a "policynmaking
power" but authority to participate in a clearinghouse. The
bill specifically states the agreenents are solely to allow for
the nutual collection and allocation of premum taxes, which is
nore an adm nistering function than policynmaking. She said,

"This is not a tax increase. Qur policy holders today are taxed
at the premium tax rates of each of the states where they may

have sone type of risk located." The DA is not changing the
tax met hod. In fact, the DO's surplus line tax is |ower than
nost states. The DA is changing the nethod and who collects
it, and how it is allocated. The changes to the surplus |ine
tax in an attenpt by the federal governnent to streamine the
pr ocess. The bill would make Al aska statutes conform to the
f eder al Nonadm tted and Reinsurance Act that wll becone
effective on July 21, 2011 so the state is not in violation of
federal law, which specifically preenpts state statutes. She

said, "This is not sonmething the DO dreaned up all by itself."
This particular type of legislation to authorize entry into this

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -13- March 7, 2011



type of interstate agreement is pending in 17 states. Anot her

conpact legislation, which is nore conplicated than this
approach is pending in eight states. Conpeting legislation is
under discussion in five states. El even states are currently
studying the issue. Thus, a nunber of approaches are being

taken to i nplenment the federal |aw, she said.
3:56: 30 PM

CHAIR OLSON renarked that the proposed conmttee substitute
woul d bring the state into conpliance.

M5. HALL answered yes.

3:56: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON referred to the letter in nenbers
packets that was previously mentioned. He then referred to the

next to the |ast paragraph, which read: "NAPSLO respectfully
requests that should Alaska wish to determne as a matter of

public policy to share taxes,..." He asked who nakes the
det erm nati on. He asked whether the DCCED or the legislature
nmakes that deterni nation. He explained that the NAPSLO is

asking for clarity so their brokers would clearly understand.
He asked whether a system currently exists so that brokers wll
under st and what is happeni ng.

M5. HALL responded that the proposed CS clearly states the state

will allocate to the states where the risk is located unless the
states have not entered into a nutual agreenent. If the other
state has not entered into a nutual agreenent, Al aska wll keep
the tax, she said. She remarked that she thinks it is fairly
cl ear. She referred to the proposal that was attached to the
letter. She said the specific provision in HB 164 that pertains
to allocation and allocation formnmulas was deleted. She was
unsure of how those provisions were interpreted, but this CS
identifies the state will share the taxes back to the state in
which the risk is located, in the sane way the taxes are
currently paid directly to those states. The state is not

forfeiting sonething. The federal |aw nmakes states collect 100
percent of the tax. Thus, the state currently collects only the
portion of the risk taken in Alaska, which is the only portion
that is taxed. Wth the changes in federal law the state is
required to tax 100 percent of the policy for soneone whose hone
state is Alaska. She offered her belief that there would not be
significant nulti-state risks. Under federal law, the state

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 7, 2011



woul d collect 100 percent and allocate back the anmpunt paid in
t he individual state.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether she was confortable that
brokers and policyholders can <clearly understand these
provi sions and changes in the CS

M5. HALL answered yes, she is very confortable with the clarity
inthis bill.

3:59:51 PM

CHAIR OLSON added that Nonadmitted and Reinsurance Reform Act
(NRRA) has been in every trade publication for the past few
nmont hs and has been reviewed in a nunber of ways. The vehicle
that appears to have the nost support is the manner in which the
DA is addressing the NRRA

4:00: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT stated he was |ooking for the fiscal
note, which he thought would be a positive fiscal note. He
asked for clarification on the anount of noney that is collected
on behal f of other states.

M5. HALL responded that Al aska does not currently collect for
other states, just Alaska's taxes. Thus, Alaska 1is not
collecting for others.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT recalled that Al aska would collect 100
per cent .

M5. HALL agreed that Al aska would collect 100 percent and then
allocate the taxes back to the states. In further response to
Representative Chenault, she explained that the broker or the
cl eari nghouse proposed in HB 188 woul d be tasked wth making the
al I ocati on.

4:01: 54 PM

CHAI R OLSON comrented the allocation would only apply to states
out si de of Al aska. He asked Ms. Hall to hazard a guess as to
t he percentage coll ect ed.

IVS. HALL responded that the DA collects approxi mately

$50, 000,000 in premum tax, wth approximately $3,000,000 as
surplus lines prem um tax. The DO's tax auditor estimates,

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 15- March 7, 2011



given that the DO does not collect statistics, approximtely
$500,000 is multi-states risks. She concluded that $500, 000 of
$50, 000,000 is a pretty nom nal anount.

4:02:49 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 164.

4:04:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved proposed CSHB 164, |abeled 27-
LS0444\M Bailey, 3/4/11, as anended, with a zero fiscal note
There being no objection, CSHB 164(L&C) was reported from the
House Labor and Commrerce Standi ng Comrittee.

4:04: 37 PM

The conmttee took an at-ease from4:04 p.m to 4:07 p. m

HB 155- PUBLI C CONSTRUCTI ON CONTRACTS

4:04: 37 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 155, "An Act relating to public construction
contracts. "

4:08: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON nmde a notion to adopt Amendnent 1,
| abel ed 27-LS0249\B. 3, Banni st er, 2/ 22/ 11, which read as
foll ows:

Page 1, line 5:

Del ete "$75, 000"

| nsert "$50, 000"
Page 4, lines 8 - 9:

Delete ", except for a school district of a
muni cipality or a regional educational attendance
area"

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES obj ected for purpose of discussion.

4:08:44 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -16- March 7, 2011



JENNI FER SENETTE, Staff, Representative Kurt O son, Al aska State
Legi slature, stated that Anmendnment 1 would reduce the threshold
from $75,000 to $50, 000. The second change is in proposed
Section 8, on page 4, |lines 8-deleting except for a school
district. Initially, the draft inadvertently exenpted school
districts, but it was not the sponsor's intent to exenpt schoo

districts. Thus, Amendnent 1 will correct that error and brings
school districts under the unbrella so they are subject to the
provi sions of the bill, including the proposed $50, 000 cap.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES renoved her objection.
There being no further objection, Arendnent 1, was adopted.
4:10: 26 PM

MAX M ELKE, Business Manager, Plunbers & Pipefitters Local 262

stated that he is a 56 year Juneau resident. He said he is the
Busi ness Manager for the Plunbers and Pipefitters with about 100
menbers. He stated that he strongly oppose HB 155. He rel ated
that in the 80s and early 90s nenbers had a tough tine. He said
that at tinmes a plunber mght be laid off for several nonths and
smal|l contracts hel ped nmenbers survive. He said this is not a
uni on versus non-uni on i sSsue. He also said he was glad to see
t he anmendnent added for the school districts. He characterized
the bill as a formof right to work legislation and "is a start
to the race to the bottom"

4:13: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked whether there was any figure his
organi zation would feel confortable with given that the Little
Davi s- Bacon applies to contracts over $2,000.

MR. M ELKE answered that several carpenters are working in the
union hall on small projects, probably under $12,000. He stated
that during his career the small projects kept nmenbers going
He expressed concern on the limt.

4:14: 28 PM

CHAIR OLSON clarified that the $2,000 figure was set in 1935 and
has not been adjusted since then. He recalled that if the
figure was adjusted for inflation the anpbunt would be about
$32, 000.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 7, 2011



MR. MELKE offered that construction work has not changed that
much. He maintai ned nenbers’ work for small projects provides
the "bread and butter” for contractors.

4:15:13 PM

MATHEW M ELKE stated he grew up in Juneau. He said his father
worked in the construction industry but has also worked in the
i ndustry. He agreed with his father's testinony. He further
said small jobs have nmade a difference to him He offered his
belief that he often would not have been able to "put food on ny
own table if it wasn't for a $5,000 job that my boss got." He
was unsure how low the mninmum limt for Little Davis-Bacon
woul d affect him He feared he would be unenployed, draw ng
unenpl oynment, and soneone from out of state would be awarded the
bid on a job. He expressed concern that raising the contract
[imt from $2,000 to $75,000 before the Little Davis-Bacon Act
(LDBA) would apply would attract Lower 48 contractors who wll
low bid contracts, perform subpar work, and | eave. He said,
"They don't really care if they get a bad reputation for it."
The current requirenent for LDBA allows Ilocal trained and
skilled workers to work on construction jobs. The workers do
good jobs, maintain their reputations, and are proud of the work
they performin the conmunities in which they live. He stressed
that this is very inportant to him He concluded by saying, "I
| ook around the roomand | don't really fit in here..."

CHAIR OLSON commented that everyone fits in this room He
remarked that at |east one person sitting at the table has
enpl oyed uni on and non-uni on peopl e.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT agr eed.
4:17:37 PM

JON SM TH, Menber, Carpenters Local 2247, stated that he was
raised in Dillingham and has lived in Juneau the past 11 years.
He spoke in opposition to HB 155. He shared sone quotes he
f ound. He read, "The proponents of prevailing wage |egislation
wanted to prevent government from using its purchasing power to
underm ne wages of its citizens. It is believed that governnent
should set an exanple by paying the wages prevailing in a
locality for each occupant hired to government contracts and
buil ding code projects.” He said that rings true to him since
it sets an exanple by paying the prevailing wage of the area as
t he standard. He related that it is not inexpensive to live in
Al aska. It is especially expensive to live in rural Al aska. He

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- March 7, 2011



grew up working construction and |iked working the Little Davis-
Bacon jobs because he knew what he'd be paid. It said it was
inportant to him growing up and working in the construction
i ndustry. He read, "The purpose of the Davis-Bacon Act is to

pr ot ect its enpl oyees and gover nnment contractors from
substandard wages and to pronote the hiring of |[|ocal |abor
rather than the <cheap labor from distant places.” He
characterized the Little Davis-Bacon Act (LDBA) as the "level
playing field." He further related that when out of state

contractors conme to Alaska on a Title 36 project, they are aware
of the specific |abor costs, whether the labor is wunion or
nonuni on | abor. Renoving the requirenment for Little Davis-Bacon
means an out of state contractor will bring in his owmn crew and
pay whatever wage he wants to pay. He offered his belief that
nost Al askans cannot afford to work for |ess. The standard of
living is less in the Lower 48 so the wages are |ess. In
closing, he said the cost of a $50,000 is just that, but the
Department of Labor & Wrkforce Devel opnent (DLWD) will have a

certified payroll, and wages are set. He said if this bill
passes the same project will cost $50,000, but the DLWD will not
have a certified payroll, and the enployees would not be
guaranteed a good wage. The contractor wll still bill out

$50, 000 but the workers could be set at the m ni num wage.
4:21:09 PM

MARVI N YODER, Deputy Admnistrator, City of Wsilla, asked to
speak in support of HB 155. He recalled prior testinony. He

offered his belief that this bill would affect nostly state and
| ocal governnent. He reviewed the CGovernor's proposed budget
and very few projects for his comunity are listed under

$100, 000. He predicted the percentage of people affected woul d
be | ow He acknowl edged that an out of state contractor m ght
nmobilize for a $50,000 contract in Anchorage or Fairbanks, but
he did not think it was |likely contractors would bid on projects
in Fort Yukon for the same cost. He related he has frequently
wor ked in bush Al aska on small projects. He pointed out that it
is not just the wages people are concerned about but the

paperwor k required. He said it should be good for the small
rural conmmunities to bid on the small projects. He concl uded
that this is not a big change, considering it represents 70
years of inflation. It makes it nuch easier for nunicipal or

state governnent to have this threshold and efficiency.

4:23:43 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- March 7, 2011



SHANE LI NSEY expressed his concern with the |anguage in HB 155.
He asked, "If it's not broke why fix it?" The state has done
well with its finances and has about a $12 billion surplus. He
offered his belief that this bill would not benefit the state,
but would allow lower wages to be paid while lowering the
quality of work. He said, "As the saying goes, you get what you
pay for, and this Davis-Bacon allows an even playing field for
all the contractors when they are bidding on these contracts.”
He stated his opposition to HB 155.

4:24:39 PM

LORI DAVEY, Menber, Board of Supervisors, South Gol denview Rura

Road Service Area, stated that her rural road service area is
17.5 mles off the Rabbit Creek and Gol denvi ew area of Anchorage
hi 'l si de. She offered the South Gol denview Rural Road Service
Area's support for HB 155. She stated her fellow board nenber

Robert Johnson, is also wth her today. She related the
struggle the —road service area has had grappling wth
requi renents on any project of $2,000 or nore when the Little
Davi s- Bacon Act (LDBA) "kicks in." She related that $2,000 of
materials is a very low threshold for road inprovenent projects.
A culvert replacenment or pothole nmaterial can easily go over
$2,000 and trigger the Davis-Bacon rates, she said. She further
related that the Little Davis-Bacon provisions significantly
raise the cost of any roadwork. The rate has been in place
wi t hout any adjustnment since 1935, that even the basic rate of
inflation would raise the rate to $32,000, using an average
inflation rate of 3.78 percent. She stated that Little Davis-
Bacon wages are nuch greater than the prevailing wage. She said
that her road service area pays alnost double wages. | t
adversely inpacts residents since they cannot fix as nmany roads.
These funds directly inpact property taxes. She expl ai ned the
residents pay 1.8 mls per hundred thousand dollar valuation on

their hones. These are not just big conpanies affected by the
Little Davis-Bacon provisions, but honmeowners. The increased
threshold and nore «clearly defining the different between
mai nt enance and construction, residents will be able to maintain
and inprove our roads nore cost effectively. The basic buying
power with inflation corrections will double and nore roads wl|
be able to be inproved. She urged nenbers to pass HB 155 to
better utilize public nonies, create efficiencies, and

acconpl i sh nore road work.

4:26:49 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- March 7, 2011



NANCY M PETERSON, Public Wrks Director, Cty of Unalaska,
stated her strong support for HB 155. She stated that she is a
manager of rural public construction projects and supports
raising the threshold for the application of the Little Davis-
Bacon Act. She related that many small projects have increased
in cost to the point the projects are no longer viable and do
not get built due to the wage requirenent. She also has worked
with small contractors who chose not to bid on projects due to
the added reporting requirenents for the jobs. She has served
on the Alaska Minici pal League (AML) public works and
infrastructure |egislative subconmttee for the past eight

years. She has listened to snmall conmunities and villages
di scuss projects that were lost due to the extra wage costs
required. These communities have limted resources. When

project costs increase from $15,000 to $20,000 can affect
whet her the project is feasible. Mny of the rural projects are
"quality of life projects" rather than the projects driven by
life safety issues. These projects are good projects but cannot
be justified when costs escalate. She recalled testinony from a
prior hearing in which one speaker nentioned the small nunber of
projects this bill would affect based on the nunber of state
projects under $75,000 in its database. She asked nenbers to
al so consider all the projects that were not built because the
cost of the project increased so comunities could no |onger
support them She offered her belief that HB 155 would create
new opportunities for all of Alaska's communities. She strongly
urged nmenbers to pass HB 155.

4:29:24 PM

SHI RLEY MARQUARDT, Mayor, Gty of Unalaska; Vice President,
Al aska Muni ci pal League (AM.), offered her strong support for HB
155. She stated that AML is on record with its resolution of
support for the bill including the $50,000 threshold. She
explained at the last AM. nenbership neeting, its nenbership
voted to increase the threshold for Little Davis-Bacon wages
from $2,000 to $50,000 on public construction projects and an
exclusion for maintenance contracts be added. She said she
thinks this is a reasonable and responsi ble adjustnent after 76
years of the status quo for the wage threshold while the
construction and nmaintenance costs have nmmintained a steady
I ncrease. Wth a long overdue adjustnent and the exclusion of

mai nt enance contracts, t he | egi sl ature will provi de
opportunities to municipalities that currently forego projects
or maintenance due to the cost. She said that this is a
significantly positive change for all conmmunities in rural
Al aska. Jobs and updated infrastructure as smaller projects

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- March 7, 2011



becone a reality provide a "win-win" with the passage of HB 155,
she al so sai d.

4:30: 53 PM

BRET HELMS, Training Director, United Association of Plunbers
and Pipefitters, Local 375, stated his opposition to
nodi fications to Little Davis-Bacon proposed in HB 155. The
proposal to raise the threshold limt for construction contracts

will not necessarily lower construction costs but may increase
the nunber of out of state enployers who bid on construction
proj ect s. Currently, enployers are required to pay Little
Davi s- Bacon journeyman prevailing wages unless the enployer has
a federally registered apprenticeship program He predicted
that if HB 155 is passed, enployers will not be required to have
a registered apprenticeship program and wages w || be subjective
to the enployer. He expressed concern that apprentices trained
in programs will not have the opportunity to work on these

proj ects. These are good jobs and jobs that allow Al askan nen
and wonmen to support their communities, raise famlies, and
remain in Al aska. He feared they may be replaced by a cheap
nonresident, low skilled work force brought in from the Lower
48. He concluded by stating this proposal would dinmnish wages
and would also lower the standard of living across Al aska, in
communities that are already suffering in the depressed econony.
He thanked nenbers for listening to his coments.

4:32:21 PM

ZEBULON WOODMVAN, Menber, Laborers Local 942, said he has |ived
in Alaska his entire life. He said, "Leave this |aw alone.” He
offered his belief that exenpting the Little Davis-Bacon Act
(LDBA) from jobs up to $50,000 would have affected hundreds of
projects |ast year. Wth nmany projects being awarded to
nonuni on contractors, this proposal attacks wages for many
nonuni on workers who do not have an advocate. The Little Davis-
Bacon wages provide a level playing field for all bidding
contractors. It helps to ensure a quality wage and is not "a
race to the bottom by contractors who are willing to pay workers
| ess. ™ This bill would take dollars away from the worker to
allow municipalities to obtain nore work for |ess noney. No one
suggested taking "a dine from a contractor or limting rental
rates on equipnent, or limt the profit on the sale of
material ." He related he heard considerable discussion on the
onerous paperwork, which was too nuch for the contractor. He
said, "If we take noney out of the workers pocket it wll nmake
life better for the contractor.” He expressed concern for the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- March 7, 2011



working famly. He said that raising the threshold may not
reduce the cost of bids, since contractors nmay "pocket nore
money" while workers are paid |ess. He urged nenbers to oppose
HB 155.

4:34: 07 PM
JEAN TRAI NOR, Menber, Alaska Public Enployees Association

(APEA), stated she is speaking as an APEA nenber and also as a
| ong-term nonuni on and union worker in Al aska. She stated she

has lived in Al aska for over 35 years. She urged nenbers to
oppose HB 155. She characterized HB 155 as "a race to the
bottom ™ She said she has repeatedly heard stories about |ow

paid workers from the Lower 48 taking Alaskan dollars and
sendi ng outside, which does not help Al aska's commnities. She
suggested supporting our communities is acconplished by paying a
fair wage to Al askans. She said she is especially bothered by
Lower 48 workers driving down wages. She suggested that 1,400
projects were in the $2,000 to $50,000 range. Snall "bread and
butter"” projects provide wages that bridge the big projects for
wor ker s. Al aska has a boom and bust econony. There are timnes
when fair wages paid under Little Davis-Bacon projects provide
i ncome that helps see the famlies through the | eaner tines.

4:36:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE THOWPSON asked whether she lived in a road
servi ce area.

M5. TRAINOR answered yes. In response to Representative
Thonpson, she said even though she lives in a road service area
in the Goldstream Vall ey, she still supports HB 155.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVWPSON poi nted out that Little Davis-Bacon has
the potential to double road service area fees added to her
property taxes.

MR.  TRAINOR enphasized she is fully supportive to have the
peopl e grading her road obtain a fair wage.

4:37:43 PM

JIM LAITI, Business Representative, Plunbers and Pipefitters
Local 375, stated he is a lifelong Al askan. He has worked in
the construction industry since the 1970s. He related that the
work is seasonal and cyclical. He recalled years in which he
wor ked for eight or so contractors. He worked on day, week, or

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- March 7, 2011



monthly jobs, all of which help support |ocal contractors who
must maintain their facility and staff. Addi tionally, he and
his friends nust also maintain their honmes during the wnter
nmonths as conpared to those who live in the Lower 48 and just

work during the construction season. He asked nenbers not to
advance HB 155, which will negatively inpact Al askan workers as
well as contractors. He stated that using a skilled highly

trained worker can nmake all the difference on a renovation
project or maintenance project in ternms of the overall cost over
tine.

4:40: 20 PM

JASON ALWARD, Business Agent, International Union of Operating
Engi neers Local 302, stated that he is a lifelong Al askan. He
is speaking on behalf of hinself. He asked whether a problem
exists in terns of the very old statute pertaining to
construction contracts over $2,000 should be covered under
prevailing wages. He offered his belief that a probl em does not
exist with the status quo. Seven or eight states currently have
| oner threshold on contracts. This ensures that Alaska Hire is
a priority. He offered his belief that using the Little Davis-

Bacon wll "level the playing field® for contractors by
elimnating enployers fromthe ability to "get jobs on the backs
of their enployees.” He stated that raising the threshold does
not guarantee jobs wll cost |ess. It only guarantees that
workers paid |less and even nore inportantly, the worker nmay not
be an Al askan worker. He characterized this bill as a "race to
bottoni which he did not believe is necessary at a tinme when the
state has $12 billion in surplus funds. He concluded by stating
t hat di m nished wages for Alaskans for nostly seasonal
occupations is not the answer. He said, "I oppose HB 155.
Thank you."

4:42: 27 PM

RON AXTELL, Representative, Laborers Union Local 942, stated
that he helps represent over 2,000 Alaskan union |aborers in
Sout hcentral Al aska. He al so speaks for small business workers
who are entitled to earning a living wage. He asked how to
stretch workers and inprove Alaska when this bill has the
potential to nove Al aska backwards. He offered his belief that
by raising the threshold on paying the prevailing wage for
projects it also would |ower the standard of many workers who

count on prevailing wage work. He stated that if the wage is
i nadequate it is possible jobs wll not be available. He
related that a higher ceiling nakes it nore |ikely outside

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- March 7, 2011



bi dders will bid successfully on jobs. There is no guarantee

these contractors wll hire Al askans. The state subsidizes
prograns. He asked whether paying less wll result in
subsi di zing nore prograns. He urged nenbers not to change the

current limt.
4:44: 10 PM

KEI TH MONTGOVERY, Busi ness Representative, Carpenters Local
1281, stated he is a 28 year resident of Alaska. He said he is
glad to see the anendnent to the bill was adopted. He offered
his belief that HB 155 does not provide a nechanism to devel op
the workforce or the standards set forth in prevailing wage
j obs.

4:45: 38 PM

JOHN GARRETT, Menber, Sheet Metal Wrkers Local 23, stated he is
an 18 year Al askan. He spoke in opposition to HB 155. He
recalled prior testinony and comented with respect to raising
t hr eshol ds. He said that jobs can be divided into phases. A
person could have |arge jobs divided into many phases, which is
just one way to game the system He agreed with the conments
that this bill is a "race to the bottom"” He thought it m ght
lead to the situation in which people cannot afford to live in
the state. He rem nded nenbers that health care and utility
costs have increased exponentially. He said, "This is not a
uni on or nonunion issue. This is a worker issue.” He did not
understand why the burden is placed on the worker. He
understood that costs need to be considered but this is not the
way to do it. He thought the approach attacked workers.

4:47: 28 PM

BRONSON FRYE, WMenber, Painters and Allied Trades Union, Local
1959, stated that he is a lifelong Alaskan and is a journeynan

drywal |, finisher, and painter by trade. He has worked union
and nonunion jobs. He currently represents painters, drywall
finishers, floor <coverers, and glaziers. He has been in
comercial construction for ten years. The Davi s-Bacon or
prevailing wage jobs provide the financial |I|ifeblood for many
construction workers in Al aska. He said he bases this on his
experience and conments by nany others in the construction
i ndustry. He enphasized that this is not a union versus

nonuni on issue. The wages paid to union and nonuni on workers on
Davi s- Bacon projects pronotes the growh of the mddle class and
boosts the state's overall econony. Since the state has a $12

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -25- March 7, 2011



billion surplus, it would be a travesty to pass a bill that
woul d devastate the incone of thousands of construction workers
in Al aska. He explained that "race to the bottont has a rea
and tangi bl e neaning. Wen a contractor bids on a project, the

three main variables in construction are nmaterial cost,
overhead, and |abor cost. O those, the mterial cost and
overhead are approximately the same, but the labor cost is the
only real variable. Construction contracts are awarded to the
| owest bi dder. Having a standard, such as Little Davis-Bacon
hel ps the worker. It also ensures the construction contract is

awarded to a responsible contractor and is not a "race to the
bottom" He urged nenbers to pl ease oppose HB 155.

4:50: 58 PM

LARRY  BELL, Representati ve, | nt er nat i onal Br ot herhood  of
Electrical Wrkers (IBEW Local 1547, stated he has three kids
and is a second generation Al askan. He is a resident of

Wasi | | a. He represents alnost 8,000 active and retired nenbers
of the IBEW He stated his opposition to HB 155. He said that
this bill is not good as a neasure of the "floor" wage for
Al askans. It is not good for local hire. It is not good for
seasonal workers in Al aska. It is not good for the quality or
ensuring quality of construction on state-funded projects. He
inplored nenbers to leave this bill alone. He offered his
belief that HB 155 ensures enploynment on public funded jobs wll
focus on efficiency and the ability to do the job right and
effectively.

4:52: 01 PM

SHAWN CRCSS, Apprentice, International Brotherhood of Electrica
Wrkers (IBEW Local 1547, stated that he was testifying in
support of his 1local union. He asked commttee nenbers to
oppose HB 155.

[ HB 155 was hel d over.]

4:53:13 PM

ADJ OQURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
4:53 P. M

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 26- March 7, 2011



